
 

SOUTH HAVEN CITY HALL IS BARRIER FREE AND THE CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN WILL PROVIDE 
THE NECESSARY REASONABLE AUXILIARY AIDS AND SERVICES FOR PERSONS WITH 
DISABILITIES, SUCH AS SIGNERS FOR THE HEARING IMPAIRED AND AUDIO TAPES OF PRINTED 
MATERIALS BEING CONSIDERED AT THE MEETING TO INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES AT THE 
MEETING UPON SEVEN (7) DAYS NOTICE TO THE SOUTH HAVEN CITY HALL.   

Harbor Commission 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
Tuesday, January 19, 2016, 5:30 p.m.  
Council Chambers, South Haven City Hall 
 

                                        City of South Haven 
 
 

Please note that the meeting will be held in South Haven City Hall, Council Chambers. 
 

 
1. Call to Order 
 
Roll Call: Vice-Chairman Mary Stephens, Cathy Pyle, Tim Reineck, Tim Stegeman, Greg 
Sullivan, Council Representative Steve Schlack 

 
2. Approval of Agenda 

 
3. Approval of Minutes: November 17, 2015 Regular Meeting 

 
4. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will Be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 

 
5. Selection of Chairperson 

 
6. Financial Report 

 
7. 2016 Meeting Dates Resolution 

 
8. Kal-Haven Marina 

 
9. 2016 Marina Rates Resolution 

 
10. Member and Staff Comments 

 
11. Adjourn 

 
 

 
 

 



Harbor Commission 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
Tuesday, November 17, 2015, 5:30 p.m.  
Council Chambers, South Haven City Hall 
 

                                        City of South Haven 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order by Arnold at 5:30 p.m.  
 

Present: Sullivan, Reineck (5:35 p.m.), Stegeman, Stephens, Arnold  
Absent:  Pyle, Silverman 
 
Also present: Brian Dissette, City Manager 

 
2.  Approval of Agenda  
 

Motion by Stegeman, second by Stephens to approve the November 17, 2015 Regular 
Meeting Agenda as presented. 

 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
3.  Approval of Minutes:  October 20, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 

Motion by Stephens, second by Stegeman to approve the October 20, 2015 Regular Meeting 
Minutes as written. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

     
4.  Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 

Brian Dissette, City Manager: Noted that Paul VandenBosch, former Assistant City 
Manager/Harbor Master stepped down from his position after nineteen years. Dissette 
introduced Kate Hosier, who has been appointed Acting Harbor Master, outlining her 
credentials and qualifications for the position.  

 
5.  Financial Report 
 

 Hosier reviewed the Financial Report, noting seasonal inactivity and seasonal slip deposits      
 still coming in for next year’s boating season.   

 
 



November 17, 2015 
Harbor Commission Minutes 
DRAFT 

2 
 

6.  Black River Park Kayak Concession 
 

Hosier explained that the city was approached by Chris Campbell of SoHa Surf Shop about 
doing a rental kayak concession at Black River Park for one year. Campbell has successfully 
operated a concession on the South Beach. The proposal is for a one year license 
agreement, renewable annually with five percent (5%) gross paid to the city. Hosier pointed 
out the draft license agreement in the packet, noting that the proposed concession will be 
located in the newly paved area by Black River Park with the new accessible launch nearby. 
 
Chris Campbell, SoHa Surf Shop: Noted that the city has the river and wondered about 
having something closer making kayaks, maybe canoes, perhaps paddleboards available.  
Stated he is interested in seeing how things would go; does not know how much people will 
use it but might as well offer something to do that is not just the beach. 
 
Tim Stegeman: Regarding the agreement, stated he understands it is in front of the Harbor 
Commission because the five percent (5%) is in lieu of launch fees but wondered if the 
concession is more in the Parks Commission arena.  
 
Dissette explained that by code Black River Park falls under the domain of Harbor 
Commission. The requested area is outside of the paid admission area. Anyone who brings a 
kayak or canoe can launch there without paying; Campbell understands that he cannot 
influence them to get a canoe from him and pay. But those who would like to rent a canoe 
and launch there can do so. Dissette noted that this last season we had a payment of about 
$5,000 credited to the Parks fund from Campbell’s South Beach concession.  
 
Stegeman sees no problems with the launch but wonders about the concession. Dissette 
explained there is a bit of gray area with Black River Park; portions clearly fall under the 
Parks Commission, but because the proposed concession is immediately adjacent to the 
ramp and entry point, bringing it to Harbor Commission was the right way to go.  
 
Reineck asked what kinds of food and drink will be offered to which Campbell responded that 
if anything is sold, it would be sunblock or a hat, things directly related to being on the water. 
Campbell stated there would be no food vending.  
 
Dissette stated that with three (3) years’ experience working with Mr. Campbell, he has been 
fully compliant with all of our insurance requirements and there have been no reported 
claims.  
 
Sullivan asked if this contract is exclusive to which Dissette responded that it will be exclusive 
for any other vendors and Mr. Campbell knows he may not restrict the public from launching 
there. Dissette said if a competitor is desirous of entering the water, they may have access 
through the launch access. After further questions from Sullivan, Dissette said some other 
vendors may show up; if they refuse to supply the city with a commercial license, we can do 
what we did last year: call the police and have them ticketed. 
 
Stephens questioned the reference in paragraph 5a which states “including food and drink 
items” and requested language be inserted to ban alcoholic beverages. Dissette explained 



November 17, 2015 
Harbor Commission Minutes 
DRAFT 

3 
 

that alcoholic beverages are already banned from the parks, so there is no problem adding 
that language.  
 
Arnold reiterated the city has been working with Campbell for three (3) years and have had 
no problems, noting that he anticipates the same at Black River Park. 
 
Stegeman reminded of the tool in the police tool box from probably six (6) years ago, noting 
that the public may need to know that particular law.  
 
Dissette added that we will clarify the alcoholic provision, noting that this is a generic license 
agreement and it will be made clearer. 
 
Motion by Stephens to recommend approval of the license agreement with clarification added 
to Paragraph 5a to include non-alcoholic beverage language. Second by Sullivan.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
Member and Staff Comments 
 
    There were none. 
 
7.  Adjourn 
 

Motion by Stegeman, second by Reineck to adjourn at 5:45 p.m. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 



Revenues: Month Actual
YTD 

Actual
2015-16

Adopted Budget
State Grant -$                           # -$                    326,000$                  
Charges for Service -                                 52,656                164,500                    
Interest and Rents 3                                 18                       2,600                        
Other Revenue -                                 -                         -                                

Total Revenues 3$                              # 52,674$              493,100$                 

Expenses: Month Actual
YTD 

Actual
2015-16

Adopted Budget
Personnel Costs -$                           18,025$              42,549$                    
Supplies -                                 24                       4,230                        
Admin/Computing/Equipment Fees 2,095                          12,572                25,145                      
Contractual Services 3,083                          12,839                24,160                      
Utilities 759                             4,751                  10,250                      
Other Services and Charges 708                             4,236                  11,355                      
Repairs and Maintenance -                                 1,143                  22,000                      
Capital Outlay -                                 6,750                  437,000                    
Operating Transfers Out to 296 483                             2,900                  5,800                        
Total Expenses 7,129                          63,240                582,489                    

Depreciation 4,227                          25,360                50,720                      

Total Expenses and Depreciation 11,355$                     88,600$              633,209$                 

Net Fund Change (11,352)$                    (35,926)$             (140,109)$                

Retained Earnings June 30 579,018$            
Less Net Capital Assets (345,273)$           

 Net Undesignated Reserves 233,745$            

Add Seasonal Rentals paid but not posted to income yet 59,071$              
Deduct Receivables owed to BRP but not yet received -$                    
Deduct Expenses paid in advance, not posted to expense yet -$                    
Add(Deduct) Amount due to/ from Beach, Rev earned but not in cash -$                    
Add Accounts Payable owed but not paid yet -$                    

Adjusted Undesignated Reserves 256,890$            

Cash & Investments Balance at month end 256,890$            

City of South Haven
Black River Park Fund - Fund 545

For the period ended December 31, 2015



Black River Park Revenues

Black River Park Revenue
As of December 31, 2015

Fiscal Year Boat Launch & Seasonal Seasonal Transient Revenue Operational Net
 Ending Parking fees Launch Permit Dock Dock Total Expense Revenue Note: Operational Expense does not include depreciation of approximately 

2007 84,563 9,480 42,544 10,471 147,058 90,412 56,646 $50,000 per year.
2008 96,484 11,143 37,896 10,053 155,576 97,145 58,431 Operational Expenses do not include large construction expenses or.
2009 93,239 9,240 37,261 11,922 151,662 99,992 51,670 Transfer to River Maintenance Fund of approximately $5,800 annually
2010 84,432 9,249 38,478 10,183 142,342 90,883 51,459
2011 66,393 8,658 42,038 3,859 120,948 113,430 7,518
2012 73,619 10,711 55,134 10,097 149,561 129,949 19,613
2013 71,440 9,150 47,844 10,980 139,414 102,155 37,259
2014 85,510 12,987 47,487 10,550 156,534 143,867 12,667
2015 43,770 8,504 101,265 8,961 162,500 96,753 65,747
2016 38,315 725 11,340 1,968 52,348 53,590 -1,242

Boat Launching & Parking Fees Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 0 0 0 1,289 4,160 7,725 13,459 7,941 5,917 1,808 0 0 42,299
2008 0 0 0 831 2,768 5,172 11,030 10,046 4,709 2,170 0 0 36,726
2009 0 0 0 370 3,378 5,558 10,738 7,704 8,311 812 0 0 36,871
2010 0 0 0 527 6,102 4,284 13,972 11,844 2,799 2,186 0 0 41,714
2011 0 0 0 126 4,301 6,870 19,145 10,345 7,373 1,221 0 0 49,381
2012 0 0 0 0 7,000 10,050 19,667 9,346 4,702 2,376 1,031 112 54,285
2013 56 0 91 637 3,671 6,154 14,069 12,964 4,874 3,081 14 0 45,611
2014 0 0 0 866 5,519 6,100 11,176 13,249 5,160 1,243 0 0 43,313
2015 0 0 0 1,149 5,189 6,604 16,800 11,136 7,727 2,652 0 0 51,257

Launching - Seasonal Permit Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 0 0 0 2,261 4,157 2,749 1,453 0 0 0 0 0 10,620
2008 0 0 0 1,885 3,743 2,972 1,620 0 0 0 0 0 10,220
2009 0 0 0 2,770 4,924 2,608 640 0 0 0 0 0 10,942
2010 0 0 0 1,370 7,158 1,015 1,546 0 75 0 0 150 11,314
2011 0 0 0 610 75 1,403 1,222 0 0 75 0 0 3,385
2012 0 0 0 600 6,620 1,580 1,200 0 0 -270 0 0 9,730
2013 0 100 400 2,400 3,900 3,250 1,050 200 50 0 0 100 11,450
2014 100 75 175 1,875 4,500 2,425 1,275 250 0 0 0 100 10,775
2015 0 75 75 1,629 1,850 3,250 725 0 0 0 0 0 7,604

Seasonal Dock Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 9,140 27,530 6,155 11,695 12,270 5,762 0 0 250 400 5,200 4,787 83,189
2008 7,940 45,315 9,400 11,905 12,675 -1,388 0 0 200 2,000 5,009 1,655 94,711
2009 6,865 41,215 7,085 9,125 4,990 15,095 0 0 0 0 5,000 0 89,375
2010 3,740 30,265 19,680 11,325 15,585 -1,163 1,650 0 0 0 4,650 2,369 88,101
2011 6,550 22,995 3,740 7,215 8,505 8,720 727 3,707 0 1,680 2,175 4,670 70,684
2012 3,995 20,485 9,585 6,440 18,500 1,655 3,745 0 0 600 2,000 200 67,205
2013 3,070 24,760 11,180 6,850 17,300 1,735 55 985 0 800 4,700 2,650 74,085
2014 49,950 -430 -1,870 8,490 11,425 8,755 1,870 0 200 4,660 4,500 2,670 90,220
2015 66,305 7,235 -3,800 7,265 10,360 0 0 1,130 600 2,000 7,610 0 98,705

Transient Dock Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 0 0 0 169 1,303 1,986 3,988 2,672 984 0 0 0 11,102
2008 0 0 0 329 1,562 1,609 2,571 2,904 1,204 303 0 0 10,481
2009 0 0 0 0 483 1,776 2,444 3,796 1,332 0 0 0 9,831
2010 0 0 0 0 748 930 2,657 2,479 746 0 0 0 7,560
2011 0 0 0 0 818 1,958 4,492 2,190 1,181 23 0 0 10,662
2012 0 0 0 0 604 2,221 3,567 2,325 1,125 98 0 0 9,939
2013 0 0 0 0 163 1,873 3,815 4,435 808 74 0 0 11,168
2014 0 0 0 0 911 2,944 2,412 3,592 194 0 400 0 10,453
2015 0 0 0 0 114 2,249 933 712 323 0 0 0 4,331



Revenues: Month Actual
YTD 

Actual
2015-16

Adopted Budget
State GrantS-Bldg & Dredging -$                               -$                            112,500$                                   
Interest and Rents 3                                    3,474                          2,000                                         
Charges for Service 5,325                             152,740                       560,000                                     
Other Revenue -                                     5,220                          8,000                                         

Total Revenues 5,328$                           # 161,434$                     682,500$                                   

Expenses: Month Actual 0
YTD 

Actual
2015-16

Adopted Budget
Personnel Costs -$                               50,646$                       83,000$                                     
Supplies 482                                9,518                          11,630                                       
Admin/Computing/Equipment Fees 3,309                             20,211                         39,710                                       
Contractual Services 5,842                             49,081                         105,000                                     
Other Services and Charges 9,524                             59,591                         134,149                                     
Utilities 1,951                             23,383                         46,000                                       
Repairs and Maintenance -                                     5,595                          45,000                                       
Capital Outlay -                                     -                                  254,500                                     
Operating Transfers Out 1,757                             10,540                         21,080                                       
Total Expenses 22,865                           -   228,567                       740,069                                     
Depreciation 11,108                           66,650                         133,300                                     

Total Expenses and Depreciation 33,974$                         295,217$                     873,369$                                   

Net Fund Change (28,646)$                        (133,783)$                   (190,869)$                                  

Retained Earnings June 30 2,382,397$                  
Less Net Capital Assets (2,070,922)$                 

 Net Undesignated Reserves 311,475$                        Net Working Capital

Add Seasonal Rentals paid but not posted to income yet 252,351$                     
Deduct Expenses paid in advance, not posted to expense yet
Deduct Receivables owed to Marina but not yet received (651)$                         
Deduct State amounts owed to Marina but not yet received -$                           
Add current expenses owed but not paid yet 1,359$                        

Adjusted Undesignated Reserves 430,752$                    

Cash & Investments Balance at month end 430,752$                    

City of South Haven
Marina Fund - Fund 594

For the period ended December 31, 2015



Marina Fund Revenue

Marina Fund Revenue
As of December 31, 2015

Fiscal Year Ending in Revenue Operational Net
Seasonal Transient Total Expense Revenue NOTES ON OPERATIONAL EXPENSES:

2003 259,840 166,084 425,924 403,463 22,461
2004 280,151 167,907 448,058 429,353 18,705 Operational Expense does not include depreciation of approximately $133,000 per year.
2005 282,245 170,944 453,189 479,287 -26,098 Operational Expenses do not include large construction expenses.
2006 300,819 173,817 474,636 517,881 -43,245 Operational Expenses do not include the annual transfer to the River Maintenance Fund
2007 343,171 170,869 514,040 471,088 42,952 of approximately $21,080 annually. 
2008 368,408 168,362 536,770 493,906 42,864
2009 377,955 166,674 544,629 492,039 52,590
2010 350,635 161,584 512,219 485,399 26,820
2011 314,270 140,546 454,816 521,900 -67,084
2012 330,660 151,046 481,706 427,390 54,316
2013 377,199 89,267 466,466 599,418 -132,952 Operating Expense excludes reimbursable dredging costs
2014 402,337 154,894 557,231 535,339 21,892
2015 432,603 151,348 583,950 419,246 164,704
2016 43,956 108,784 152,740 218,027 -65,287

Seasonal Marina Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 58,007 147,702 34,975 42,960 23,115 -3,846 6,199 1,554 703 1,100 22,348 19,285 354,102
2008 60,795 185,520 32,325 36,210 19,130 16,761 820 50 0 6,550 26,799 900 385,860
2009 44,784 185,069 32,390 25,955 31,150 23,488 843 50 850 900 27,990 1,000 374,469
2010 13,035 218,460 41,530 20,235 5,050 20,692 0 434 350 200 29,812 1,000 350,798
2011 43,222 157,210 38,473 31,230 12,498 -158 800 1,950 400 1,100 17,625 8,865 313,215
2012 31,810 178,650 44,840 14,750 31,795 -1,925 0 200 1,050 3,940 11,420 850 317,380
2013 29,476 169,790 80,125 37,555 28,362 14,431 0 0 750 7,735 7,300 7,545 383,069
2014 328,765 5,389 22,415 950 13,080 8,408 3,918 4,814 12,360 10,495 5,300 6,481 422,375
2015 359,425 1,345 16,760        9,510 2,135          60 0 200 2,200 16,266 19,965        5,325 433,191

Transient Marina Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 0 0 0 8,528 11,494 39,340 56,647 48,986 10,983 1,553 -41 0 177,490
2008 0 0 0 11,657 8,957 29,620 53,315 53,501 11,385 630 0 0 169,065
2009 0 0 0 11,972 10,994 24,877 55,645 39,835 22,176 1,301 0 0 166,800
2010 0 0 0 8,445 9,029 25,154 52,730 40,107 8,654 1,299 0 0 145,418
2011 0 0 0 373 16,162 21,221 47,565 41,459 12,635 515 0 0 139,930
2012 0 0 0 4,684 12,448 31,740 40,344 21,935 4,392 0 -267 0 115,276
2013 0 706 3,502 2,466 3,689 12,501 33,066 40,527 17,724 843 359 542 115,924
2014 2,236 4,453 5,894 6,520 10,785 31,946 42,313 40,590 9,691 816 0 1,780 157,023
2015 2,829 7115 7,571          7,319 13,530 17,793 44,362 48,388 14,946 1,089 0 0 164,941



Revenues: Month Actual
YTD 

Actual
2015-16

Adopted Budget
Assessments -$                         -$                -$                         
Interest and Rents -                           11                    -                           
Other Revenue -                           -                  -                           
Operating Transfers In 3,073                       18,440             36,880                     

Total Revenues 3,073$                    18,451$          36,880$                  

Expenditures: Month Actual
YTD 

Actual
2015-16

Adopted Budget
Operating Supplies -$                         -$                500$                        
Contractual Services -                           5,522               10,000                     
Repairs and Maintenance -                           -                  -                           
Capital Outlay -                           -                  20,000                     

Total Expenditures -$                        5,522$            30,500$                  

Net Fund Change 3,073$                     12,929$           6,380$                     

Prior Year End Fund Balance June 30 84,339$           

Estimated YTD Fund Balance 97,268$          

Cash & Investments Balance at month end 97,268$          

Projected Cash Balance at Fiscal Year End 90,719$          

City of South Haven
River Maintenance Fund - Fund 296

For the period ended December 31, 2015



 

 
 
January 12, 2016 
 
TO:  Harbor Commission 
 
FR:  Kate Hosier, Acting Harbormaster 
 
RE: Harbor Commission Meeting Dates for 2016 
 
 
The Harbor Commission meets on the third Tuesday of each month at 5:30 p.m. at City 
Hall in the Council Chamber room.  These are the following dates proposed for the 2016 
meeting schedule: 
 

January 19 
February 16 
March 15 
April 19 
May 17 
June 21 
July 19 
August 16 
September 20 
October 18 
November 15 
December 20 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that the Harbor Commission adopt Resolution 2016-01, a resolution 
setting the 2016 Meeting Dates for the Harbor Commission. 
 
 
 

City of South Haven
City Hall  539 Phoenix Street  South Haven, Michigan 49090-1499 

Telephone (269) 637-0700  Fax (269) 637-5319 



 

 

 

HARBOR COMMISSION  
OF THE CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN 

COUNTIES OF VAN BUREN AND ALLEGAN, MICHIGAN 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-01 

A RESOLUTION SETTING MEETING DATES FOR 2016 

Minutes of a regular meeting of the Harbor Commission of the City of South Haven, Allegan and 
Van Buren Counties, State of Michigan, held in the City Hall, 539 Phoenix Street, South Haven, Michigan, 
on January 19, 2016, at 5:30 p.m., local time. 

Board members Present: ________________________________________________________  

Board members Absent: _________________________________________________________ 

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member _______ and supported by 
Member _______. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The regular meetings of the Harbor Commission are hereby scheduled for the following dates: 

January 19 
February 16 
March 15 
April 19 
May 17 
June 21 
July 19 
August 16 
September 20 
October 18 
November 15 
December 20 

 
 
AYES: ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
NAYS: ____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 



 

 

 

 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.  
 

___________________________________ 
Kate Hosier, Acting Harbormaster 

 

CERTIFICATION 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the City 
Council at a meeting held on January 19, 2016, at which meeting a quorum was present, and that 
this resolution was ordered to take immediate effect.  Public notice of said meeting was given 
pursuant to and in compliance with the Open Meetings Act, Act No. 167 of the Public Acts of 
Michigan 1976 (MCL 15.261 et seq.). 
 

    _________ 
Marsha Ransom, Recording Secretary 



Zoning Board of Appeals 
Staff Report 

January 19, 2016 

Harbor Commission Staff Report 

 
Nixon Application for Kal-Haven Marina 

 
 

City of South Haven 

 

 
Background Information:  
 
Kal-Haven Bikes, Inc., represented by David Nixon, 1073 E. Wells Street, has submitted an 
application to construct a six foot wide dock and 13 finger piers (26 boat slips) at his property at 
the end of Black River Road. The boat slips are intended for use by the guests of the Kal-Haven 
RV Park.  

In October of 2012, Mr. Nixon went before the zoning board of appeals (ZBA) to request an 
interpretation of zoning ordinance section 1716, Access Standards. This interpretation was in 
response to the zoning administrator refusing to grant him a permit allowing access to a 
commercial use through a residential street1.  After the ZBA upheld the zoning administrator 
decision, Mr. Nixon challenged their decision in court and the decision of the ZBA was also 
upheld. 
 
The effect of this ruling (included) is that Mr. Nixon may not use the Black River Road access for 
construction vehicles nor is parking for the marina or construction workers allowed on his land at 
the end of Black River Road. Construction vehicles are also not permitted to access the 
property from the RV Park to the north. All construction for the docks will need to be conducted 
from the water. Renter access to the marina will be from the RV Park only. 
 
The only vehicles allowed at the end of Black River Road are emergency vehicles and city 
permission has been granted for that traffic. 
 
The application as submitted includes the required drawings and both the MDEQ permit and the 
Army Corp of Engineers permit.  

Mr. Nixon explains in his parking narrative that 20 of the 26 slips will be rented to persons 
occupying an RV spot in the park. There are 2 parking spaces provided for each RV space and 
this arrangement is satisfactory. Marinas require 1.5 parking spaces for each slip and the 
remaining six required spaces will be located in the nine surplus spaces along the western 
boundary of the park and shown on the plans. 

 

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends that the Harbor Commissioners review the attached plans and documents 
and prepare a recommendation for the Planning Commission and City Council. 
 
                                                 
1 While Mr. Nixon’s property is zoned B-3, Waterfront Business, Black River Road, the only northern 
access point, is zoned R1-B, Single Family Residential. Ordinance section 1716 states that “No 
nonresidential access shall cross residentially-zoned property”. 
 



Zoning Board of Appeals 
Staff Report 

January 19, 2016 

Support Material: 
 
Attorney Memorandum 
Application 
Army Corp of Engineers permit  
MDEQ permit  
01-07-2016 Kal-Haven Marina Plans 
Court decision re: access 
Staff memo to MDEQ re: access 
City attorney letter to MDEQ re: access 
2006 Original Park Plan 



 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 

To: South Haven Harbor Commission 

From: Scott Smith & Nick Curcio, City Attorneys 

Date: January 19, 2016 

Re: Parking Requirements for Proposed Kal-Haven Marina 

 At this evening’s meeting, you are asked to review and make a recommendation regarding a site plan 
for a proposed commercial marina on the Black River.  The applicant, Kal-Haven Bikes, Inc., is proposing 
to construct a dock with 26 boat slips, approximately 30 feet in length.  The Zoning Administrator believes 
that the proposed parking for the marina does not comply with the Zoning Ordinance’s requirement for at 
least 1.5 off-street parking spaces for each boat slip.  As explained in detail below, we believe a reviewing 
court would uphold her determination. 

 The property is located in the City’s B-3 Zoning District on the eastern bank of the Black River.1  The 
Kal-Haven Trail runs along the southern and southeastern borders of the property, with residential parcels 
lying to the north and the east.  The applicant owns and operates the Kal-Haven RV Park Campground 
on a separate parcel south of the subject property,2 on the other side of the Kal-Haven Trail.  Pedestrians 
are permitted to cross the Kal-Haven Trail to go from one property to the other, but vehicles are not.   

 The only vehicular access to the subject property is via a private unpaved road, known as “Black 
River Road,” which runs northeast from the subject property across residential parcels until reaching the 
Blue Star Highway.  In 2012, the City’s Zoning Board of Appeals (the “ZBA”) determined that Section 
1716.2 of the Zoning Ordinance prohibits any commercial uses on the subject property that include 
vehicular access on Black River Road.  Following that decision, the applicant applied for a variance that 
would allow commercial access to the subject property via Black River Road for an unspecified 
commercial use.  The ZBA denied the variance request, in part because the applicant failed to establish 
that the variance would not increase the volume of traffic on Black River Road.  Evidence in the record 
suggested that the road could not accommodate additional traffic without being expanded and improved.  
There was also evidence that an expansion project would be detrimental to the wetlands surrounding the 
road.  For these reasons, among others, the Van Buren County Circuit Court affirmed the ZBA’s decision 
on appeal.3  Following the court’s decision, the City Council amended the Zoning Ordinance to allow a 
single-family home to be constructed on the subject property.4 

 The proposed site plan for the marina provides parking entirely on the RV campground site to the 
south of the Kal-Haven Trail.  As the applicant has explained: 

Each of the 20 R.V. sites will include a boat slip when they are rented and the remaining six boat 
slips shall use nine parking spaces along fencing on the west property lines as shown in the 
plans.5 

Notably, the “R.V. sites” to which the applicant refers consist of two 10’ x 30’ parking spaces, as required 
for campgrounds under the Zoning Ordinance.6  This means that the campground site has a total of 49 
parking spaces that are approximately 10’ x 30’ in size.  The Zoning Ordinance requires that at least 40 
such spaces be provided on the site in order to accommodate its use as a campground.  Accordingly, the 
campground site has only 9 spaces beyond what is already required for the campground use.  

                                                      
 
1 Tax ID No. 80-53-870-010-00. 
2 Tax ID Nos. 80-53-870-011-00 & 80-53-870-012-00. 
3 Case No. 13-62-898-AV. 
4 Zoning Ordinance § 901.17. 
5 This parking narrative was provided in the applicant’s application to the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality for a permit 
under Part 301 of Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act.  The applicant has obtained that permit as well as a permit 
from the U.S. Corp of Army Engineers under Section 10 of the Rivers and Harbors Act. 
6 Zoning Ordinance § 1800.12(c)(7). 



MEMO: Harbor Commission 
DATE: January 19, 2016 
PAGE: 2 
 

 

 As noted above, the Zoning Ordinance requires 1.5 off-street parking spaces for each boat slip, in the 
proposed marina.  Because the proposed marina has 26 slips, a total of 39 parking spaces are required 
for the marina use.   

 Ordinarily, the Zoning Ordinance allows requisite parking to be provided on a separate lot less than 
300 feet away from the commercial structure that it is intended to serve.7  While the proposed parking for 
the marina appears to satisfy the distance requirement, the Zoning Administrator has determined that it is 
not sufficiently accessible and practically useful for the patrons of the marina.  This determination is 
supported by at least three considerations.  First, the applicant is “double-counting” the required parking 
for the RV campground as the required parking for the marina, which violates the Zoning Ordinance’s 
requirement that the requisite number of parking spaces be provided separately for each use that has a 
parking requirement.8  The applicant has not applied for a special use permit allowing combined parking, 
and the site does not satisfy the criteria for such a permit because the business hours for the campground 
and marina overlap.9  

 Second, aside from the double-counting issue, the lack of vehicular access across the Kal-Haven 
Trail is also problematic.  According to the Zoning Administrator, the Zoning Ordinance requires 1.5 
parking spaces per boat slip (as opposed to just 1) in part to ensure that the parking lot is large enough to 
allow vehicles with boat hitches to maneuver through the lot.  In other words, the Zoning Ordinance 
contemplates that patrons will be able to use their vehicles to tow their boats to the marina.  This would 
not be possible in the proposed marina because the Kal-Haven Trail separates the parking lot from the 
marina site and motor vehicles are not allowed to cross the Kal-Haven Trail.  While a patron might be 
able to reasonably carry a kayak or even a canoe by walking across the Kal-Haven Trail, the applicant 
clearly anticipates that marina (with its 30-foot boat slips) will be used for much larger boats.  Accordingly, 
the proposed parking for the marina site will not be able to serve one of the core functions for which it is 
required.   

 Third, the Zoning Administrator is legitimately concerned that the proposed parking arrangement 
might result in unlawful use of Black River Road for vehicular access the marina site.  Because the 
parking spaces on the campground site cannot be used to bring boats to the water, marina patrons would 
have to sail their boats to the marina on the Black River and then separately arrange to have their 
vehicles delivered to the campground site.  This would create a significant inconvenience for patrons and 
might cause some to try to drive directly to the marina site on Black River Road.  It would be difficult, if not 
impossible, for the City to prevent this type of unauthorized access, which would place a significant 
burden on the neighbors whose properties are burdened by the Black River Road easement. 

 We hope this memorandum sufficiently explains the relevant considerations relating to the proposed 
parking plan for the marina.  Attorney Nick Curcio will be in attendance at your meeting this evening, and 
will be happy to answer any questions you may have. 

 
GRAPIDS 57671-1 395182v1 

                                                      
 
7 Zoning Ordinance § 1800.2. 

8 Zoning Ordinance § 1800.6 (“Two or more buildings or uses may collectively provide the required off-street parking, in which case 

the required number of parking spaces shall not be less than the sum of the requirements for the several individual uses computed 
separately.”). 
9 Zoning Ordinance § 1800.7 (“In the instance of dual function of off-street parking spaces where operating hours of buildings do not 

overlap, the Planning Commission may waive the dual parking requirement of 6. above by grant of a special use permit which 
specifies the terms and conditions for parking of each use.”). 



















































































 
 
 

City of South Haven
City Hall • 539 Phoenix Street • South Haven, Michigan 49090-1499 

Telephone (269) 637-0700 • Fax (269) 637-5319 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Derek Haroldson 
From:  Linda Anderson 
Re: Kal Haven Bikes, LLC 
Date: November 21, 2014 
 
 
We are sending this memo to formally offer our comments regarding the Kal-Haven Bikes 
proposal for a marina (MDEQ File Number 14-80-0027-P).  
 
The City of South Haven Zoning Ordinance, Section 1716-2 states, “Nonresidential Access - No 
nonresidential access shall cross residentially-zoned property.”  
 
Kal-Haven Bikes, represented by David Nixon, appealed this regulation to the city zoning board 
of appeals (ZBA) in October of 2012. The applicant was asking for the appeal in order to use an 
easement, to which he has recorded use, to access his property for commercial use. The 
applicant’s property is zoned Waterfront Business but the easement crosses properties zoned 
Single Family Residential. The zoning board of appeals denied his request based on the fact 
that the ordinance language was clear and the use of the easement through the residentially 
zoned and developed neighborhood would be disruptive, especially since Black River Road is 
unimproved. 
 
Kal-Haven Bikes subsequently brought a legal challenge against the ZBA in circuit court.  The 
circuit court upheld the ZBA decision based largely on the same reasoning set forth by the ZBA. 
 
The city, and the city’s legal counsel, believe that the application presented clearly violates the 
zoning ordinance and the court’s decision to the extent it contemplates non-residential vehicular 
access via Black River Road.  The application explicitly states that such access will be 
available, and calls for several parking spots.  During the litigation, it was the city’s position that 
Mr. Nixon could use the property for commercial recreational uses so long as those uses were 
accessed by means other than Black River Road (i.e. the Kal-Haven Trail or the Black River 
itself).  Thus, the city objects to the means of access and to the provision of parking. We are not 
objecting to the commercial use of the property in-and-of itself. The commercial use, once legal 
and practical access is formulated, shall need to be determined by the planning commission and 
city staff as a separate application. 
 
If you need a copy of the court order or the official transcript of Kal-Haven Bikes vs City of South 
Haven, MI, please let us know. Thank you. 
 
Linda Anderson, Planner and Zoning Administrator 
269.637.0760 
landerson@south-haven.com 

mailto:landerson@south-haven.com


 

 2 0 0  O T T A W A  A V E N U E ,  N . W . ,  S U I T E  1 0 0 0  
G R A N D  R A P I D S ,  M I   4 9 5 0 3 - 2 4 2 7  
T E L E P H O N E :   ( 6 1 6 )  4 5 8 - 1 3 0 0  
F A C S I M I L E :   ( 6 1 6 )  4 5 8 - 6 7 5 3  
h t t p : / / w w w . d i c k i n s o n w r i g h t . c o m  

S C O T T  G .  S M I T H  
S G S m i t h @ d i c k i n s o n w r i g h t . c o m  
( 6 1 6 )  3 3 6 - 1 0 4 4  

 

 

D E T R O I T  |  N A S H V I L L E  |  W A S H I N G T O N ,  D . C .  |  T O R O N T O  |  P H O E N I X  |  L A S  V E G A S  |  C O L U M B U S  

T R O Y  |  A N N  A R B O R  |  L A N S I N G  |  G R A N D  R A P I D S  |  S A G I N A W  

December 1, 2014 

 Via Email and U.S. Mail 
 
Derek Haroldson 
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality 
7953 Adobe Road 
Kalamazoo, MI  49009 

Re: File No. 14-80-0027-P 

Dear Mr. Haroldson: 

As the City Attorneys for the City for the South Haven, we are writing regarding Kal-
Haven Bikes, Inc.’s pending application under Part 301 of the Natural Resources and 
Environmental Protection Act (“NREPA”) to construct a marina on the parcel located at 716 
Black River Road, South Haven, Michigan 49090, Tax I.D. No. 80-53-870-010-00 (the 
“Property”).  These comments supplement the memorandum submitted by the City’s Planner and 
Zoning Administrator, Linda Anderson. 

The Property is zoned “B-3 Waterfront Business District.”  It borders the Black River to 
the west and the Kal-Haven Trail to the south and southeast.  Residential parcels lie to the north 
and northeast.  The only vehicular access to the Property is via a private, unpaved road known 
“Black River Road” that is approximately 16 ½ feet in width running northeast from the Property 
across residential parcels until reaching the Blue Star Highway. 

Section 1716.2 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance provides that “[n]o nonresidential access 
shall cross residentially-zoned property.”  In 2012, Kal-Haven Bikes requested an interpretation 
of that provision as applied to the Property from the City’s Zoning Board of Appeals.  The 
Zoning Board of Appeals determined that the ordinance prohibits commercial uses on the 
property that include vehicular access via Black River Road.   

Following that decision, Kal-Haven Bikes applied to the Zoning Board of Appeals for a 
variance from Section 1716.2 that would allow Black River Road to be used to access an 
unspecified commercial use on the property.  The Zoning Board of Appeals denied the variance 
request, in part because Kal-Haven Bikes failed to establish that the variance would not increase 
the volume of traffic on Black River Road.  Evidence in the record suggested that the road could 
not accommodate additional traffic without being expanded and improved.  There was also 
evidence that an expansion project would be detrimental to the wetlands surrounding the road.  
For these reasons, among others, the Van Buren County Circuit Court affirmed the Zoning Board 



D I C K I N S O N  W R I G H T  P L L C  
Derek Haroldson 
December 1, 2014 
Page 2 
 

GRAPIDS 57671-1 343968v2 
 

D E T R O I T  |  N A S H V I L L E  |  W A S H I N G T O N ,  D . C .  |  T O R O N T O  |  P H O E N I X  |  L A S  V E G A S  |  C O L U M B U S  

T R O Y  |  A N N  A R B O R  |  L A N S I N G  |  G R A N D  R A P I D S  |  S A G I N A W  

of Appeals’ decision on appeal (Case No. 13-62-898-AV).  Following the court’s decision, the 
City Council amended the Zoning Ordinance so as to allow a single-family home to be 
constructed on the Property. 

Kal-Haven Bikes’ pending application to the DEQ requests a permit under Part 301 of 
NREPA to construct a commercial marina on the Property with vehicular access via Black River 
Road and 25 parking spaces.  This proposal is in clear violation of the City’s Zoning Ordinance 
and the circuit court’s decision.  The City’s position regarding the application can be 
summarized as follows: 

1. All uses in the City’s B-3 Waterfront Business District are subject to site plan approval 
by the City’s Planning Commission, in addition to any approvals needed from state 
agencies. 

2. The Zoning Ordinance prohibits the Planning Commission from approving a site plan for 
commercial use on the property that involves vehicular access via Black River Road.   

3. In order to obtain site plan approval for the proposed marina, Kal-Haven Bikes would 
have to establish that no construction workers, material suppliers, customers, employees, 
or any other individuals associated with the commercial use would access the property 
via Black River Road.  Alternatively, Kal-Haven Bikes could seek a variance permitting 
such access.1 

4. If the marina were approved and constructed on the Property, any use of Black River 
Road for vehicular access to the Property would violate the Zoning Ordinance.  Each 
instance and each day of violation is a separate offense.  Violations of the Zoning 
Ordinance are public nuisances per se.  

Thank you for your consideration of these comments.  Please feel free to contact us if you 
have any questions regarding the City’s position on the application, or regarding the City’s 
zoning approval process. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Scott G. Smith 
 

SGS:CNC 

                                            
1 As noted above, when Kal-Haven Bikes previously requested a variance to use Black River Road for commercial 
access to the property, it did not specify a proposed commercial use.  The Zoning Board of Appeals’ denial of the 
variance request was based in part on a determination that, without knowing the proposed use, it was too difficult to 
predict the likely increase in traffic on Black River Road. 
 





 

 
 
January 11, 2016 
 
TO:  Harbor Commission 
 
FR: Kate Hosier 
 
RE: 2016 Marina Rates 
 
A resolution of support for the 2016 Marina rates was already approved by this 
commission at the August 18, 2015 meeting and subsequently approved by the City 
Council at the September 8, 2015 meeting. However, that resolution (Resolution 2015-
42) contained an error in amount of the reservation fee charged and omitted the 
cancellation fee for reservations. 
 
In Resolution 2015-42, the reservation fee to be charged is $5.00 for municipal transient 
docks not on the Camis reservation system (Michigan Department of Natural 
Resource’s reservation system). This is inconsistent with the DNR’s own fee structure 
which mandates an $8.00 reservation fee to be charged. Camis actually has two 
reservation fee rates: (1) for reservations made via the Call Center, the fee charged is 
$10.00; and (2) for reservations made the website or at the local marina office, the fee 
charged is $8.00. With the City charging $5.00 for a reservation fee for transient dock 
reservations, there are three different reservation fees that a boater could potentially be 
charged depending on the location of the dock reserved or the method of the 
reservation. Charging a different reservation fee rate than the DNR causes confusion for 
both the boater and marina staff.    
 
Additionally, Resolution 2015-42 omitted the collection of a cancellation fee. Currently, 
Camis charges collects a $10.00 cancellation fee whenever a reservation is cancelled 
on that system. For continuity and consistency this fee should have been added for the 
municipal marina docks that are available for transient rental which are not part of the 
DNR’s reservation system. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that the Harbor Commission approve the changes to the 2016 
marina rates resolution. 
 

City of South Haven
City Hall  539 Phoenix Street  South Haven, Michigan 49090-1499 

Telephone (269) 637-0700  Fax (269) 637-5319 



Resolution No. 2016-__ 
- 1 - 

 

CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN 
VAN BUREN AND ALLEGAN COUNTIES, MICHIGAN 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2016-___ 

 
A RESOLUTION SETTING THE SEASONAL 

AND TRANSIENT SLIP RATES AT SOUTH HAVEN MUNICIPAL MARINAS 
 

 Minutes of a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of South Haven, Van Buren 
and Allegan Counties, Michigan, held in the City Hall, 539 Phoenix Street, South Haven, 
Michigan 49090 on _____________, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. local time. 
 

PRESENT:  _________________________________________________  
 
ABSENT:            
 

 The following preamble and resolution was offered by Member  ______   and 
supported by Member  __ . 
 
WHEREAS, the Michigan State Waterways Commission establishes recommended fees for 
both transient and seasonal moorings for state governing Municipal Marinas; and 
 
WHEREAS, the local units of government must maintain rate structures at or above for transient 
and seasonal rates in compliance with terms and conditions of previously executed grant-in-aid 
contracts for state grant assistance in facility development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Harbor Commission has reviewed and recommends the following rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council concurs with the recommendations as forwarded to the Council by 
the Harbor Commission.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall take effect upon passage by the City 
Council. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the South Haven Municipal Marina and Boat 
Launch Rates for 2016 be set as follows: 
 
Seasonal Dock Rates 
 
The following seasonal dock rates will be in effect at the City operated facilities: 
 

Slip #'s   Slip Size in Ft.  Amount 
       

Northside Marina      
41-52, 65-68  30   $2,980 
57 thru 64   35   $3,470 
88-96   38   $3,800 
1 thru 10   40   $4,030 
53-56   45   $4,480 
11-40, 83-87  50   $5,030 
69 thru 82   60   $5,910 



Resolution No. 2016-__ 
- 2 - 

 

       
       
 
Maritime Marina      
1 thru 30   40   $3,795 
       
Black River Park      
1 thru 20   24   $1,690 
21 thru 62   30   $1,910 
       
Boats greater than the rate assigned will be charged per  $120 
additional foot       
       
Reservation Fee $8.00 
Cancellation Fee (for reservations) $10.00 
       
Black River Park Seasonal Launch Pass  $100 
Age 65 and over Seasonal Launch Pass  $75 
Black River Park 10 Launch Tokens   $50 
Black River Park Daily Launch   $7 

 
The following discounts may be applied to seasonal boater fees, subject to approval of the 
marina manager: 
 
1. A first year discount of $500 may be offered to new seasonal boaters. 
 
2. Shallow draft slips or unused slips may be rented for use of dinghies and small boats at 
$1,000 per dinghy/boat per season. 
 
3. After August 1, seasonal slips may be rented at a discount for an amount equal to the 
seasonal slip fee prorated by the number of remaining days in the season plus 50% of that 
amount, using the following formula: 
 
(Remaining Days in Season) / (Days in Season) * Seasonal Slip Fee * 1.5 = Discounted Rate 
 
4. If, after the deadline for payment for the season, there appears to be a lack of boats to fill 
longer slips, the marina manager may rent slips to shorter boats at a rate equal to the boat 
length plus one half the difference of the slip length and boat length. 
 
5. The marina manager may request in writing from the city manager special rates to improve 
occupancy.  The marina manager may apply those rates after receiving written approval from 
the city manager. 
 
Transient Slip Fees 
 
Transient slip fees at the North Side Marina, South Side Marina and Museum Marina are the 
current year rates approved by the Michigan State Waterways Commission, Column D. 
 
Transient slip fees at the Black River Park Marina are the current year rates approved by the 
Michigan State Waterways Commission, Column C. 
 



Resolution No. 2016-__ 
- 3 - 

 

During the period from July 1 to September 1, transient slip fees are increased by 10% for 
Friday and Saturday overnights. 
 
Transient Discount Rates 
 
The following discounts may be applied to transient boater fees, subject to approval of the 
marina manager: 
 
a. Pre-Memorial Day and Post-Labor Day Special, stay 4 nights get 3 nights free. 
 
b. After July 15, a Remainder of Season discount will be made available.  A seasonal slip may 
be rented for the remainder of the season, with the fee calculated as the number of days 
remaining until October 15 times the minimum Waterways Transient rate (column 1) for the 
length of boat. 
 
Short Term Docking 
 
The marina manager is authorized to allow short term dockage of vessels for a period of less 
than eight hours when dock area is available.  The short term dockage rate is $0.50 per foot. 
 
Marina and Boat Launch Facility Commercial Use 
 
Commercial use of marinas and Black River Park Boat Launch is subject to the City of South 
Haven Marina and Boat Launch Facility Commercial Use Policy, as approved by South Haven 
City Council. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall take effect upon passage by the City 
Council. 
 
RECORD OF VOTE: 
 
 Yeas:   __________________________________________________________ 
 
 Nays:  _______           
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
              
        Robert Burr, Mayor 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the 
City Council at a meeting held on __________, 2016, at which meeting a quorum was present, 
and that this resolution was ordered to take immediate effect. Public notice of said meeting was 
given pursuant to and in compliance with the Open Meetings Act, Act No. 167 of the Public Acts 
of Michigan 1976 (MCL 15.261 et seq). 
 
              
 Amanda Morgan, City Clerk 
         


	Harbor Comm Agenda cover 2016-01-19
	11-17-2015 Harbor Comm Minutes - draft
	Black River Park FS December 2015
	Black River Park Fund Revenue December 2015
	Marina Fund FS December 2015
	Marina Fund Revenue - Decemberr 2015
	River Maintenance Fund FS December 2015
	cover
	Harbor Res 2016-01 Meeting Dates
	Staff Report
	Application
	Army Corp Permit
	MDEQ permit
	716 Black River Road - Kal-Haven Marina 01-07-2016 PLANS
	KAL hAVEN MARINA 22
	KAL hAVEN MARINA 23
	KAL hAVEN MARINA 24
	KAL hAVEN MARINA 25
	KAL hAVEN MARINA 26
	KAL hAVEN MARINA 27
	KAL hAVEN MARINA 28
	KAL hAVEN MARINA 29
	KAL hAVEN MARINA 30

	2014 court order access
	staff memo to DEQ re access
	GRAPIDS-#343968-v2-South_Haven_-_DEQ_Supplemental_Comments_Re_Kal-Haven_Bikes_Application
	2006 original park plan
	cover
	Res 2016-xx 2016 Marina rates

